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(1) The transcriﬁt shall ke available for use by 3

researchers as soon as it has been deposited in the
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(2} The tape recording shall not be available for use
by researchers during the donor's lifetime. After the donor's
death, access to the tape recording shall be for hackground
use only, and researchers may not cite, paraphrase, or quote
therefrom.

{3) During the donor's lifetime the donor retains all
copyright in the material given to the United States by the
terms of this instrument. Thereafter the copyright in both
the transcript and tape recording shall pass to the United
States Government. During the donor's lifetime, researchers
may publish brief “fair use" guotations from the transcript
{but not the tape recording) without the donor's exXpress
conzent in each case.

(4) cCopies of the open portions of the interview
transcript, but not the tape recording, may be provided by
the library to researchers upon request.
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Phis interview ig hegin bapoed with Mr, Richsrd Cook oat the
loliday Inn in Southern fines, North Cerelina on Ociober 27+h,
1975, Presant: for tha interviow are Mr. Cook and D, Maclyn
Aurg of the Bisenhowar Libravy Staff.,

RERET
LTy

BR. BURG: Lot me Ledaln by csking vou whara vou born and the

yrar aof your hirkh.

SR QDR I was born in Muskegon, Michigean on Avousk Gih,

[R=TH I

IR, BURG: Were you edwirmied hen in Muaskoogon? Did you siay

e throwsh pour hich schoal caveer Tor =anple?

MAE, COOR:  Yes, T woanlh o Che publio sohools in Fuoskooon,

groduating from Muskogon figh Selwool in 1825,

GR. AlURG: Far oo young for anything in World War T,

MAL O Yes, Doo young Tor bhat,

o yroduated, did yes Lhen uo on for collage

MR. COGK:  Well T worked for bwo vears with a lzrge indusivy

thiersiz, the Shaw Trane Work=s, as an awg

DR, ELURCG . That 'y Shaw Crane Woirks

e B



ard ek, TOORATFH

[T

G

[N

Fuilding heavy industrial ecranes,

Overrhead crsneg,

Oz rhioad Crames,

Right, With a wviow that I'd work through the

~itTiena of the plent, berome a sales onginoor.
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At 1E I didn't go away o school

Which socheol Jid svon pick?

ava b Phat, T Ffolb Chat it wiouldg

s

= T

Went b Michiogan Sfate and entarzad

was hoarz a rocsgon Tor picking ML

Yos, I Mad poma Zollows Trom DL

el Tz bl owilth Ehel wonk Lo Michigas S0z

E

G

L

Rut,
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iy hoTirons

in @nginzering.

TRErTE B
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o oyou were drawn bhabk oway voursell,

That
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wts e wou drown fewseds 2 Deabtesniby ok bhe biae?

chmKr Wil Lhe Espeeclg GFfF a fralocaily JdidEatt atbiract we Lo

oined & Ffraternily arltor wy Treshman yaar.

BAG:  was it particelavly aimed at Lhose of you in cogiaeacing?

O A P, 1E WnE ||1]:||I‘"“ A hroaad crorss o et 1o, T owrm i oy

r o parconl of 1

i TE ':'|'| |_'||_1||‘_"|‘_ .I.l:l.:.illl.-rll..':'i ';.'-‘1? I.Il"_' ':'I_I'-.'-"I'!':'i| 5

AURE s T the anginseriog covueae,  nd of covwrse this wonld

wey, T orasuma, ailer you had beon in he

o By A

H
=

for a while, did vou teed bo work towasnds o specialivation?

T oyl hawi semEiNing in mind thatl you Feraiiiesd P othsr 42

oK wWeE1¥, [ owes working my way Lhroauwgh sohaonl iind Fostarclead
i im omechandaEl o g T nieisEr ane . I todedd o Vine up my 1@ar o
for the morning or e aticondon, =0 [ et 1ol waned thoe obher
alf of the day apd § seoped f0 have Wnee sucoess in oiwil

ngincering so ¢ Cinally goasduiated Az 8 civil Ty e,



Over the course of the training, the

he place where you Fali youn hied Lha e

ST 2iahl . Z2rnd T Bad worked S ooppors For a o good many yosra

mn canstroction: sp it wos o onatural thing to do.

HUst3:  Bid you graduate than '31, "3A°7

COHE in "33,

o
[
¥

1, SR
CODE:  Yeg-—-
w12 Whe depression--

(RIRE S vary Ffow ocnglnaszrs obiain

-

- S T R
G HI OMSE T TS I Al A
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COn%: Well, my Firvst dob ont of school wias on Muskegon Lake.

e
.
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Le
4,
a

Whaoweeya band L cder lerninal for tha lake freighicors and

v ucing Fraightore that were planning fo come in theye.  A=sd

Fowenbherd on a pile driver, |;'f':;'u=':]1f:1 1‘.‘-_11'i':'|l:_5_

G: S ERie lm onarie: constroaction of the nature of Tocad-

tng and unlosding MBellilics aod this ¥ind of thing.

CronEs Righe. Well (hie engincer {opk nick affer 1°d boeen

Pl chawonal Dwaa ponbTs soel Dhieey Egrnkad me 1f ] 1'1'|-'-I‘.'._§'!f: T evuakd

Tl the Jols, d 50 T kook over the engineacing sspeets ot

LERG:  Was bhis your pealt, that postocollega job?

i e W,

pd im othe coarly soaner,

1
]
s
-

vkt g T o I oundiernlband coroocckly youn stactad owl aa a8

ila driver anerator on that jon?
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Gk : Well T owas just o part of ihe ovaw. [ waa rotponsitle
At jebkied the hole Tor the piling bofoze you sod
i pilipng Jown i the Twlze and drovn Toewn wilh the mtram

e by ey a ook ':----:'-"::|Iq cart et 1o,

st e T mea. Aand fhen whea the caogivesr on (e projeet

ocame 111, you took over or him.

e Aight,

LT mow dtd dhad ek LoPo & awevipenont aastgamnnl A oz

e

3Ky Well, I went Trom rhat ok on anathier job wiih 8 enrine

conltractar. BRod, altheooohn o dig Phe cnginoosyiy for Timwm, T
r = A

atup did snything else that wasg naecassary Yo be done locTuding

Ahich foAdide -

110 = |:._':| .'-,| |-!El.,.';||r':'!_
T s cain o dilving suik, righk, which T hed done o0 s

2oEds Ag part of thae work of heandling the jet, Sor rdmanle?
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ConK: Mo, Ne. The diving [ did wes in connection with Gha
v lvuetkian oF a2 Fighithouze of f of movih Manilbos Shoalis,

Gl md Warkh Manitonn Tatand o Taoke Michhgoan.

s wWell generally helgosn bwenby--Five and thirly Tent,

Wil s One doesn't cmeonnter a hoead-hat diver evary doy of

Flha weok, oOne docsn't oncounter a Live ona, @ibhoord

Ccong: wWall 1 Fivet nbarhed Jiving suusees when [oworksd on

vha briskwaters thet were in Take Michigen Chat holipod bhe

ships sntor in rovgh woabher.

iy Tomight ask wvou bas, warta you mazried st Bhis bisex.
IR W,

piss TR yonl dhien shoy ia mErine constimcition?

iy T ostayed dn omecine construction for sboonl Dhres s

1 e

v, wlian Toomae kome Crom tha F Fhe Fightlraana

Fhe cogstryuction oF the hraakwabers ffor Lhe harhor for Maoskegon,
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of worth Maoi e Ghwsls, thoeere was a Chicago o wlinecring 3 0n

Ihal was doing work fow cilty of Mockegon snd They were

king enyginoers, I lalkad 1o fham ond wonl o work for Lhen,

COnOH:  Conmoer, Tewnsend and Oninlan at Lhat times now 1075

ronsoer, Townsend and hAssocidles

Suis S0 owon wend with thesng Thedr work was pnite similsar o

mt oy had beoen dedng.

ey Tes.  wWall, their wook was primarily wilh sunicipal
cngincoering, wtiltilies cod the 1ike, walor | roainent, S1Tieaf1on

SRR .:'1'._311}‘]'.'*:.3.. gowteE Lrosiamont, el rical I_'|5'!-||';|-ﬁi_;c-'|.:'|.* FGREA T ILEIE

s S 1k docrasosed Phe o arels ol par Lo Tedge,
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el T ohad cxperionce on o constraelion that goitae 2 Tow of
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N ) Weaa,

At hidding on dohe?
G 2 Yizg,
RRLEE ] And LDhwenn og-Ehwe-og Lo s v,

UOilE: Well it owes supervision (rom the standposnt of wheller

vark so that you hed eztoblished control pointas Tor the cone-

2aG: Lot we @k yow this guesition, too, poriaining to fhat
seoctonl pf fimEe-wetve coughly svomrd 19160 Woas khe Fiogts

s wilhin the mivod Srateag? Or dic amy af Lt dnvalveo-es
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CrEK: AR that time it was all wirhin thae Unitoed States,

e Midowest, [ oworked in Michigan, Wiksconsing,

Miwncaata, ITowa, Illinei=z, in thal sica. Yhe {imm now 1a

i Fieant changea in your lile or

MGG Oid you mske any S0

in he work Fhat vouw did botweon 1t ws saey 1936 and (rorcranmnbs o
Fi

pE 1941,
(I L Vs,

L ] - -
SURG; anat Napmeened?

NI [ was a rozweive officer, having sarkicipated in the

program at Michigsn State, amd [ was aorderad fo active

Guty in Ocbabor of 1940,

pul the pnecd for conslruction of Facilitics for Lhe expansion
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AURG: Had your commirsion akt Michigan State, had 1T heen

priginally infantry or did they ecommission you prplm the corps

ConK:  They didn't have an enginssriag unik.  A1L of the
crogineesra went into bhe codst artillery.  But apparent 1y
whon tha army was seoking of ficers for the major axpansion
in facilities, they ware looking Tor people with cngineering
harkground and axparionce. Bo T was ordered to duty with

a econstruction division of the guartermaster corps.  ‘That
wizr before the corps of engineers took over all construction.

At ane Fime they were basically confTined teo marine construc-

tion, that is rivers and harbors and hings of that kind.

ERERTl e What wa=s your reéscrve rank whan -L.'.‘.I'_“;.?' called wou up

in 1907

SURI:  Wera you married st bhis Dime?

0K : Yes
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BURG: 2o, let ma just ask you--simply as a little plece of
social history--—de you happen bto remember your reactien to
this dislocation in your 1life more Lthan a year befors

Amorica's ontry into the war?

COOK: It really dida't feal like a dislocation other than
you didn't know whaere you wera going or when. Hut I had
moved around, and my wife and [ had moved around guite a bit
from job to job so that, whon we wore ordored to Washington,
it wasn't anything diflferent than we'd been used to eXaept
wae didn't know where we woere going or whoether or not she

conld Htay with me,

BURG: And that was tha first move they made was Lo ackivate

your commission--
COOK: Yes.

BURG: Foderalize you, in wlffeck. And Lhen sont you bo Wash-

1T, D.C,

COOK: That waz just for assignment. There were quite a Fow

officerg reporking avacy day ab thak tima ko the construetion
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divigion quartermaster corps. And you were interviewad Lherae
and then assignoed from Washington Lo various parts of tha
country, My First duty assignment was Iin Fort Monroe, Virc-

ginia.
BURG: Attached to a sgspecific unit?

ook I owas atiached Lo Che consbructing guartermaster's
office in Fort Monroe. He was part of the construction
division of bthe quartermaster corps, who then woere all

respensible for all construction other Lhan rivers and harbores,

BURG: How long werse vou at Fort Monrtoe?

OO - I was there about a year and thres or four months,
mayhe a8 year and a half, and then T was assigned as a con-
struction guartermastar to the Richmond Goneral Ropot and
Holding Reconsignment Foint in Richmend, Virginia, batwaan

Richmond and 5€, Petorsburdg.

BRURG: You used Richmond and something--what was that second?

Co0K:  Richmond Ceneral Depot and Holding and Reconsignment
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Point. They were really two depots there which were joined by
interconmecting mailway track both with their own classifica-
tion yard so that shipments from all over the United States
came in thera and they woere sorlked out in the helding and
recongianment point for shipmeant overseas and in the othoer
general depet for shipment within the United States as well

SR OVRTSISREE.,

RURG: Because, at Lthe tima of your asgsignment o that duty,

wa have pas=sad into the first couple of months of 1942..

i

OO Yea,

BURG:  —-when we were ab war. Was your work at Monroe

basically, as you described a Few moments age, constrocting
or supoeEvising, arranging for tha construcktion of harracks
Facilitios and warehouse facilities and the things that one

would normally expect to see in an cxpanding--

CODK: Thimgs that were necessary for roceiving and training
of personnel. Reareabion arcas, refrigeration plants,

thasters, water fillration, walber troatmont, reads, bridges
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Wwhalever was nocessarty in connacbion with the expansion or

the constrmction of new Facititles.

qURG: Did the scale of that endeavor impress you at all?

Co0K: Very much so., I think the largest construction job I
had been on prier to that period was about a two million
Adollar joh, which in those days was a protby big job. Bnd
it jumped to fourteen, fifteen, and sixteen million dollars,

and thena later on considerably more. So it was quite & change.

BURG: fn effect, then, you as a relatively young civil

engineering type ware goeltting a sudden acceleraled course in--

C00K:  Saomething I wouldn't have received in forty years in

pormal oivilisn 1ife.

BURS; A&And wery large-scale construction projects, and
handling ewarsous sums of mwoney, Were the officers supervior

o you, by and large and in your estimabion, able te cope wilh
this, what must have bean as stunning bo them ss it was to you?

T would assume that their budgets had not been large prior Lo

1240, DRid they seen fo e able to handle this?
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CODK:s  Yes. My first ©0 was——1 wa2 trying bto think--at that
time Lk was Major [flarence] Renshaw, who later, bhefors he

rebired, becams & general.

BiRG: Was he a regular officer, Mr. Cook?

CO0K:  He was a regular army ofTicer, West Point man, ab Lhat
ime he was in the construckion division of guartermasier
corps, later transferred Lo the corps of engineers when they

fook over, Bul I served uendar him several difforont times.

HURG:  Oh, you 4id?

MO : Yiem,

RURG: Ycour pathsg--

CONH: Crosaoed,

IRl ey ——erosaed From btime Lo Lime.

COOK: When he got on new jobs he generally tried bto gob me

Eronsforred and-—-—

BURG:  Judging just from what vou'wve told me so far, you Tound
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him te e a competent nan whosa mind was flexible enough to

adjust to riches beyond imagining.

CODOK: Very much =n. At Fort Monroe we ware responsible for
the ronstruction at Port Story, Camp Honvy, Honsemond Dodnance,
Big Bethel, and Fort Bustis and Tangley Fiald. 8o wa had

gquite a span of different types of work under construction.

BURG: Tndesd you would. DPid you have a specific title during

the Monroe peried, specifie position that you cccupied?

Co0¥: I think to start out with I was bhe contracting officer,

which was responsible for procurement of all szupnlies and

materials and eguipment that we used on work that wo 4id pur-
chzge and hire-—-that's with our cwn Fforces, our own supervizion--
and for putting togother the plans and specificabtions and bid
farms For the construclkicon that we did by caontract for adver-

L3 2 -
"3 a7 EE L=

BURG: 5o & good bit of khe construcition ferce, tha labor

Foror, was civilian,
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COOK: The labor force was 211 civilian, either civilians

fhat we hired or civilians that the costractar hired.

BlURG:  And thoze whoe in affect oversaw whet was going on,
kaept taba of it, would be the army personnel in the sensae of

geeing Lo it that the contract was met.

COOK: Hight,

BURG: Now could I ask you when yvou moved to the holding and
reconsignment job in ecarly 1223, what was wvour rank at Ehat

point?

COCK: Captain.

RURG: And you, too, were heading up the ladder of command

aE the gsamne Lime.

DO Y,

AURG: How long did vou stay with that azssignmeng?

COOK: I was there about a yvear and thrse or four months, and

I was transfarred to a jeb a2t Nowport Nows bullding a sbtaging
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area where the troops that were being shippoed overscas cama
in for orientation and holding and who were waiting for

Lrangporkbation.

BURG: Was that a brand nowe-=

00Ky Brand new; it was cut right out of the weods,
BURG: And lemporary-tvpe buildings.

COZK: Tomporary-type construction.

BURG: Plus all of the ancillary material that you have to
have for troops, that is mess halls, T suppose, theaters,

Soime recreation aroas,

CO0K: Yes, refrigeration, braining.

BiltiG: Were [he troops shippaed directly From therse? Did it

bezcome a port of embarkaotion that was beefed up to--

COOK: Tt wes a staging area for the port of cmbarkation,

which was Newpoark Nows, which was, oh, maybe, Len miles
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EURG: So Ehat you are on that Jjob then until mid-1943

em I wrong? I8 it mid-19243 when you wenlt to that?

COOK: No, I was on that fobh in mid-1943,

BURGE: What was your rank thera at Newport Nows?

COOK:  Madjor.

a?

b

BURG: You're wearing engineer insignia, the castle insign

CODK:  Yes, yves, The enginears ftook over when I was at

Richmond, Wirginia.

BURG: By the way, are vou now again with the man that you had

bagun your servios with?

CoOK: WNo, I was on my own. Buf from that job I went to
Washington, D.C, as a depuky te Colonel Renshaw who wasz the

district engineer for thoe Washinglton Fngineer District.

BURG: When did yvou make that move?

COOK: That must have bean labbor part of "43 or the sarly

part of--latter part of '43.
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BURG: It was in 1943, Had any of your work op to this point,
un & the s2nd of 1243, touched upon the oreparations for the
inva=zion of North Africa or on tha coming Cverlord operation

in northwest Burope?

CO0K: Well, indirocctly in that they couldn't carrcy out the
operations without the troopa or the supplies or material
that was nacessary, and the jobhs that I was on wore all
directad towards training or gebtting men ready or supplies

rondy for overseas.

RiIRG: T wondered if there had beon any attompt Lhat came your
way to consull with officers such as yourself with re=spact to
building similar aenterprises. For example, once we had landed

in Morth Afriea, to assiszsf in the next stage, Husky, the opera-

tion against Sicily, or whether that perhaps had gone another

-

way and vou Jdidn't see.

COOF: I owasn't invelved in bhet at all., The only thing thoat
might have been related Lo it was some British officers come
over when I was at Richmond General Depot and lelding and

-

Reconsignment Foint to =ee how we were organized to carry out
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our conatruction and how we carried it out,

BURG: TInteresting. Were thay roval engineer officors?

COOK:  They ware engineer of ficers,

BURG: ©an you recall at this time what kind of reaction

Lhege officers displayed in your view?

CooK: I othought they were quite Impressed with the way the
work was organized and carried ouwt, While they were thare we
had work under all stages of construction, from the heginning

of the excavation and pouring of the foundations Lo the com-

Fletion of buildings. So they could =zee the whole bthing from

cstart to £inish.

RURG:  How lonyg were thaey with you?

COOK: About a owoak.

BURG:  Mad they indicated that thay were btouring and secing a

number of such things?

COOK:  Yesa. Differcnt types of facilitics like braining conps

and things of that kind.
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BURG: One of the reasons T asked Lhe gquestion is that it's
clear from at least some of the records that we have that some
2f the British did neot, could not grasp--again I1'11 use the
word the scale of what this country could and would do when
prazsed and that that sometimes affectaed the thinking at

higher levels in the British military circles.

CoO¥: Well I gathered that the same thing impressed these
Fellows, kecause we had two jobs that were side by side under
construction at the same time, different bypes of construction,

All phases of construction going on at the =ame time.

BURG: Now, what kind of work did you do then with Colenel

Renshaw in the militory district.

CO0OK:  Woell the district covered a gepgraphical area. In the
corps of engineers at that time Lthey were the watershed areas,
they woere split un into districts and divisions., and we wore
responsible for all of the construcktion in the distriet, the
qoographical area. So we had hospitals under construction,
airports, the Pentacgon ailding. General Ronshaw had a dual

position. He was disltlriet ecagineer of the Washington Enginecer
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Hivtryict a3 well as the officer in charge nf construction of

e Peniagon buillding.

RURG: Sp as his depuly, youa had a fairly imporiant nlaca

ConK: Well, he haed a separabe organizalion in the Foenlaugon
building that was rasponsible for that nparation, and [
besically spont my time on the construction other than the
fentzgon axcept whan thay bad seme problem that thay thought

I could Bie helpful to them on,

BURG: So your work was a roving kind of assignment auain, on-

site supervision or inspasction.

COCK: We had projeck enginsars on the construction and it oW
wy job o wigit the sites and rveview the status of consbowss
tion and find out what the probhliems were and taka what steps

that could and should be baken to rozolve them, :

HURG:  You spoke of Renshaw, promobing him to general.  Hasd

vl yourself boeen prosmoted during this period of time?
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CiHik: Well he was colonel when he was there, and T wes a

lisvtenant colonal,

AURG: Now did you =tay with the miiitary district and in

that position under Ronshaw for the remainder of (he wsr?

COOK: No. I wanied to gel on duty with troops, énd I wos

teld hat if we ook certain jobls done I could be relsased.

apiRG:  ‘that has a Tamiliar ring to it.

O S50 we got them dene and T was transferred Lo Fort Belveir,
Virginia [or ithe enginsering and construction and demollilion

tspecks of combat training.

[Tnterruption]

BURZ: You were there Lhen [or thst Kind of thing.

CODK:  Yes, &nd [ had 4 prekbity goeod ided where [ was going

Decanas we were practicing biowing up cooonut log bunkers.

BURG: And there are a0 Tow coconut palms in Purope, so you had

o doubis,

CODK:  Ho doubts,
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BURG: Might I ask, whan did you ombark on that ®ind of

training at Belveoir?

COOK: Thak wias in the summery of 12494, And I had beon thera,

oh, mayhe six wasks--

[ Interruption]

ARG : Now we were talking abouwt Balvoir before the man
started his arass cubling machine, and T wanked to ask vou

when vou had bagun that training.

) t was in the =summer of 1244, We were in the program
about six weeks when I got a call to go to the chief of
cngineesrs office in Washingten, which T did. And I was inter-
viewed by 8 man by the name of Colonel Marsden. And from the
interview I thought he was =izing me up for anobher construc-
fion job. And I thouaht I =old myself down the river bocause
I was where I wanted to bae. But threa days lalter I cob my
orders to go to Oak Ridge, Tennessas in the Manhattan

Mistrict.,

BURZ: Of whtich wou had heard nothing.
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CO0K: OFf which [ hadn't heard nothing. I went hack to tha
Washinston district engineer and said, "Look, I don't want Lo
go there, I'm whera you ssid [ could go. "

"oh, " he said, "I'1l {take care of that.™ And he says,
"§1'11 eall vou." And the next day he callsd me and he says,
"rookie, T don't know what the HManhattan Distriet is, but

that's where you'rae going."

HURG: Ha couldn't get you out of it.

COOK: MNo. S0 T went bo Oak Ridge, Tennessee, and bthe initial
assignment there was, T was an assistant to Colonel Marsden,
who'd intarviewad me, hut that was just a holding thing until
your security clesarance came through., And that took about
six woekeg, and in the meantime you did miscellansous odd jobs

that had fo be dono.,

BURG: At what point did all of this seem very unusual to you?

CODK: Well it seomed very unusual ta me the first day [ was
there because I knew thore was a Jot of activiity going on.

thare were Lhousands of people there. 'They were building a
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community, and T was in tha dormitory along with a lot of

ether officsrs.

WRGE: HNewly transferred thoere?

COK:  Newly transferred. And they were all assigned o
varipus arens which they didn't talk shout. So 1 knew that
psomething important was going on, but T didn't xnow what it

WAL,

BiRG: Did you prass around to sae if ypu counld find out what

the story was?

COOK: Wo, because there was a feeling that nobody was talkiong

about what they were doing. 8o you just didn't prass,

BURG: So prior to gatting there, vour only feelings, T sup-
ppse, would De one of disappointment 2t having to lesve
Rrlvair and T suppose you would not have beoon too surprised
that your man had not been able to put you back into Belwvoir.

I mzan that would ba the arvmy; it could he explained that way.

Aand HManhaltltan District meant nothing to him,
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CO0K: Right.,

BURG: WwWhat wa=s your reacltion when he laid that news on you?

COOK:  Well I waz guite surprised, althouwgh I falt from the
security of the place that something of thab nature was geing

O .

BURG: Withouft—-

CO0M:  Witheout knowing what ilf was,

ABURG: Without knowing rpecifically.

CUHIE: Mo,

BURG: You could not tell, T gssuma, from the construcltion
activity you szaw--thare was no way to daduce what inight he

happaning therva,

CO0R: No.

BURG: And wihen he teld you, voeu realised you had something

praeblhy important that you ware working on.
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ook REighl.,

BURG: Now may [ &sk, wore you permitied to take vour wifae

Lhera?

SO Yag,

BURG: May I ask a ssocond guestion, wara you protiy wall

Towcked o bo Oak Bidge?

COOK:; I first woant there alone and wmy wife was living in

Washington. And after T had been thers awhile I was assigned

=t

guarters, a house in bthe ciby of Oak Ridge, and that's when

my wife mowved to Oak Ridga,

BURG: Were yvou oermibtted bo tell har?

COOK: She did not Mnow what was going on. The project apor-
at=d on the theory of nesd to know, and vou only were bold

whalt you necded Lo Know bo carry out your specific job. My

aEslgomant was az K-35 operatlionsz offlicers on, [or the o

tion of the gaseouns diffu=ion plant.

BURGS:  Mow what doos K-2572
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COOK: K-25 was a code name for the area in which the plant
waAs haing constructed and far the plant itself. It was a
multi-million dallar job. The plant was ahout three stories
tall and covered more than forly acres. Colonel Cornelius,
Willizm P. Comeliuvs, wag the construction officer and I was
the oporations officer. And it was my job to work with the
operations contractor, Union Carbide, to zssist them and take
whalever action was noecesgarxy in conjuction with the construc-
tien officer to halp Carbide placa the plank in operation as

the various sections wera completed.

BURZ: And I would zssume everylhing, as rushsd as possible,

COO¥: Yes. OQuite a bit of the activity was carried on three

zhifts a day, saven dava a week.

BURG: Literally btwenty-Ffour-hour-s-day construction.

COoK: At one bima we must hawve had aboul Lwelve to fourteen
thouszand peopls on construction, aboul bken thousand people on

ooeyalion.

BURG: MNow the labor force did not know what they ware putting

Lagathar there--a gaseous diffusion nlant,
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CO0K: The construction organizabtion did not know what was
going to come out of the plant. Thare ware many poople in
the operating organization that did not ¥now. They did not
nead fa ¥now. And the operation was controlled from a
control center in the plant., And it was a econtinuous opera-
tion, The plant ran seven days a woek, twenby-four houra a

day, twelve months a year.

HUTRG: Tt was the kind of installation that could ba started

nto action zs segments of it ware brouwght to completion.

Lol

COoK:  Thak's right.

BURE:  So that ne time was lost.

COG¥:  So thak no time was last.

RURG: Wow, how long did it take before that task was com-—
pleted? Do you happen to remember when the plasnt wies one

hundred parcent complete and eperationai?

Con0E:s Oh—-—1 don't roemomber now when the test was at Alamo-—

gorde in New Mexico.
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BURG: Was it July?

COnE: I'd have to chack it I don't romoobore,

BURG:  July of '45, I Lhink.

CooE: Well, T gobt there in the early fall of 44, L don't
Ehink the plant was completely in operation Eill the carly

oart of '46.

AURG:  Bul evidenkly bad bDeen able o do whabh b necsded Lo fdo.

ConRs Yes, There were Two sonreces of fissionasble material,

tho plutonium and the uraniom 235, The gzssgus diffusion

plant was for the scparation of bthe uwranium 235 from the
normal ursnium, and of course the plutonium was reacior pro-

duced, artifically produced.

BURG: Did that particular jol, the construction of this
plant, which I prasume wags the first of its kind certainly in

tha Tnitsd States—-—

CODKE: Oh, wves.,
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BURG: --did it pose particular problems for you in the
construckion phase? Or §id it seem to bhe a fairly straight-

forward job?

CO0K: Well Lhe construction was a Fairly straichi-forward
deb. The thing that was of a development natura and wasn't
available whan the plant was starvrkted and when the pplant was
designad, they just proccecded on a2 basis that thay could
evenltually come up with a =zatisfactory preduct, and that was
the barrier in the converters that separaled the vranium 235

from the 238. And that satisfactory harrvier was nat [=h =T

dueed until the plant was well zlong in construction.

2URG:  Did you have anything Lo do with pulbting up that

barrier, the work that went inite +that.

COOK:  The barrtier was producedd in Decabur, by & subsid LALy
of Union Carhide, the Bakelite Comoany. And I did not have
anything to do directly with that, indiractly through the

cooperation, coordiszation and when we were aoing to gat it

and how much and what separation efficiency it had, Sub-

[

al naterial was deliivarad

geguently then, zfter the init
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which was adesguzte to the start of the plant and the initial

operabion of the plant, the barrier was built at the plant.

BURG: Now did that work on that single spterprisse, that
portion of Oak Ridge, did that tske you through te the
sctual dropping---wsll et ws say did it take you through the

initial test in July of '45,

CadK:  Yes, and it took us throuch to the actual use of thao
bombs on Japan. I know my wife wantad fo go hone and wisit
her parents and I fried to dissuade her not to, realizing

that after the hombs woere dropped that the news would come

cut, but [ couldn't tell hor.

BURG: S0 she was nok--

Co0¥: So she weant home.

BEURG: ['m glad you put it that particular way, boerausa T
wanlted Le Rnow if you were privy to the knowladge that the

Iicenhy had Ybesn tested,

COOK: Yas,
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AURG: You had beon told thabg—-—-

OOk Yas,

BURG: --baforo most people knew il.

CooK:  And we were privy to the planning for the banbing of
Japan becausae we had achadules of ficsionable material Lo
produce to delivar te Los Alamos be that thay could avm the

Thomhs that were coing to boe used., BSo we had, of oourss,

I

#lpse coordination with Tos Aloanes on deliveriss, and thelr

people would visit the plant, we'd visit thera.

BURG: So the nature oi your work was ceally more Ehan simply
secing to it that a building was constrocted bo produce soma-
thing of which you had knoewledge., It went beyond that., It
went to your being told just how necessary this bullding was
and what its production rate would have Lo be, and trying to
see £o it that the facilitics were built on time and could

achieva that rate of production.

COO¥: Yes. OF course, it was a Jjob of flose coordinabion

baravge the Los Alamos planning was based on whalt we could
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perceive as our ability te produce, ability to bring the
various sections of the plant on-stream., So it wasn't, you
knogw, a schedule that was thought up out of the blue by some-
body and =aid, "This iz it." Fhe schedule was gabting Lt st

the carliest possible datme.

BURG: And as we know, there wasn't 3 gregt deal of matarial
r =

available by the summer of 1945,

COGK:  No, that's right.

BURG: Enough for two. Well, tha test bembh and then two that

w had available fto drop in Japan.

CODEs Righi,

BURG: Now, were you then a party in meetings at 03k Ridge?

I would assuma that you would have to. Could you t=11 me,
what would ba the nature of Lhe sorts of mestings that would
have to be held? wWho would be thera? Beczuse T can s=e thak

it would embrace a number of different people.

COO¥E: Ye=. [t enbraced the military personnel that were in

produciion at Ozk Ridge and i assbraced, of course, the
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istrict angineer and his deputy. It cmbraced the people in
the key =lots thalt were operating the plants, snd il embraced
the people from Los Alamos who wore ko receive and use the
malterial. And it embraced the security people who were
responsible for the zocurity of the shipmants. So they ware
not large group= of people; they were generally the Rey

individuals in Lhose actiwvities that were responzibla.

BURG: Were moobtings scheduled on a pretty regular basis,

Co0K: No, there was no set, vou know, weekly moocting or
anything like that. There was close cenbackt and meetings

weve ralled when it was felt necessary to call a meeting.

BURG: The participants would represent everything from those
of vou who were arvrmy officers, and many of vou I supposs with
university doegress in engineering, allicd fields; lLhere would

=2lsp be scientists therae?

O Yoo,

BURG: Eooking at it in the very broadest sonse, was Lthere

zvar Frictd

on at these meatings or did the disparate elements

nsnually work well togather?
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cOOX: Thore was no frickion. Everybady realized that this
would more than likely end the war, and people's personal
fealings were sat aside and averybody was doing everything

they could te make a success ouk of the program.

BURG: Now in such a mesting would your function be to raport
the almost day-to-day progress that was boing made in the

caseous diffusion ecensiruction work?

CO0K:  Oh, well, they woere differeat types of meetings. We
really had no formal meetings then. We had visits by the

district engincer and visits by Ceneral Groves and periodic
meetings callad gensrally at the plant to review the status,

the schedunles, the operations to date, the problems, like

wie were hawving problems in barrisr or problems af delivery

of compressore or centrifugal pumps and things of that kina.
pURG: Were thare any labor problems, Mr. Cook?

CoO0K:  We had no labor problems, none whalbsoever.

URG: Because they were suppressod or bacausse the laborx

forca cooperatad——
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COGK:  No.  The unionsz reslized that thay wera in a e Ty
important, high priority job. We had the highest priority

in the nation.

BURG: They had not becen told specifically what was being

BURG:  Hut they had boen told it was exceedingly important,

COOK: That's right.

BURG: And respected that position.

CODK:  That's right.

BURG: Did vou find yourself in contact with Gencral Groves,

That 13, did you personally meet with him on any cccasions?

COOK:  Yes. He would call direct, the plant, =nd eay khat he
wits going to be there on such-and-zuch a day, such-znd-such a
time, who he would bring and what he wanked to see. And I

used to think that was a litktls irregular, why he dida't call
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his district enginesr. But we had a good relaltionzhip—-
General Nichols ¥noew Groves, Mnoew how he oparated; so he
didn't get upset about it. And we would always call Nichels
sa that he koow and would be available o mest the Seneral

when he showed up.

BURG: If you waere to dascribe to me GCenaral Groves, vou
wanted me to know somothing about this man that you had to

work with--what now stands owt in your mind about him?

COoK: I first met him as a first lisutsnant at Fort Monroe.
Ha came down from Washington on @n inspection trip and the
tha arpa enginear at that time was out of town; so I met thea

carly morning boat when it came in from Washinagton to Fort

Monroe about 3ix o'<lock. And he wanted ta visit evaery job
under consgtroction at Fort Monroe, under the responsibilicy
of Fort Monrope. T delivered him back to the boat that night
about seven o'clock., And my firast imprassion of him was that
he's a driver: He drove himself and he expected averybody

15z Lo drive thoemselves to get the job done. 1o must hava

bean =atisfied with his visit, which is perhaps why I was
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orderad to active duty by the Manhattan Districk-—-

BURG: I was going to ask whether he might have remerhared

YO .

COOK:; He was the commanding general. Yes, well T was at
Ozk Ridge, cut in the plant when the phone call came snd =aid,
"I want to meet vou in Decalur at such-and-such a date, such-

and-such a time,"

BURG: Groves was on the ohone.,

LODK:  Groves.,  Or he'd call you up and say, "I'm going to get

on & train in Chicago for Santa Fe and [ want vou on thers."

BURG:  Howewver you do it. And wherever, Was that driving

gquality leavened with humor? Was he pretiy much a2 serious

mand

COOX:; Well I wonld say fhat he wissg 8 very serioss man. Ha
realized the importance of his Job gnd he wasn't ogoing to
lat &nything stand in the wavy of him getting it done. And

I dun'lt think that job over would have bDoeon accomplished
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in the time that it was accomplished without a man like that

at the head of it.

BURG: What was vour impression of your colleagues' reaction

b Groves? Was it 2 favorabhle ¥ind of reaction or--

CooK: Well, there ware plenty of gripes, of course, when you
ara rookted out of bed ak three o'clock in the morning. But
averyhody rezpeocted him, and they rtealized why he was driving.
He never changed all the while Lhat the Manhattan District

was undoer pressure and until the first bombs wore dropoed.

And then T would say he became an entirely different man.

He was cordial, jovial, human-—-

AURG: Tess machine=lika.

COoK:  Yes,

BURG: FHaving accomplished that task,

COOF:  That's right.

BURG: I ses. ‘Thak's an interesting thing, isn't it? Was he
2 man who drove with whip and cudgel or did he drive more by

cxample and--
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COOK: He drove by example, but he also drove by tongua, you

know, what to do and when to get it Sone.

BURG: Yes. A profana man?

CO0K: No, not at all., At least T don't remember him as such,

BURG: Newer uwsoed Lb on you anyway.

COonK: Mo,

BURG: Clearly in the poesition that yvou had there would have
beon, I would think, guite a bit of pressure on you., Did you

feal ity and 1iFf so, how did vou handle 1t7

COOK: Well, I felt it all vight. But T really didn't Ist it

bother me. The only thing you can do is the best you can.

BURG: Tet me ask you zboub vour hours. Were your hours the

eight-hour day or were vou on beck-and-call?
COOK: Seven days a waek.

BURG: All thae tim=.
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CODK:  Eleven, twelve, fourtesn, fifteen hours a day. Soma-

Limes twenly-Ffour hours.,

BURZ: Your health stood up under this Kind of roulting.

COOH:  Yes,

RURG: May I ask, whnat did you do Lo relax? Whal was your

way af sasing off?

CooOK: Well, we had gatherings on the weokend of neighbors
and things like that. O0f course they usually resultbed in the
women baing in one room and the men in another =s=o they could

both talk, but--

BURG: All of the people there were, that is 2ll of the men
in these gatherings, were privy pretliy much to the same lovel

of material that vou Were I 2ssame.

CO0K:  Mob 2lwavs, no, bhocause we had a8 wide oross section of
activity. Like, for instance, the people that were responsikhle
for the operation of the community, witilities and the bus service
and the schools and the shopping centers and the highwavs and

things like that, they weren't privy to production and test
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intformation. But we know who wa=s and who wasn't, and we just
didn't talk about things we shouldn't when we had a wide

crpss-section of people bogether.

HURG: Was there, for example, a club or clobs whare you

people could go far dancing and cocktails, this sort of thing?

Cconk:  We didn't keep ourselvas soparate from the communiiy.
There wera community functions, community theater group,
community orchestras and community dancas. Thoy were a wids
crass—-saction of people; thara were probably more Phis in Dak
®Ridge than any other city in the world. So the interests were
guite varied., And it didn't matter what job you were assigned

oy you had friends in all groups.

BURG: Let me move back to your wife momentarily before moving
on. You had tried to get her to sLay, but sha wanted to visit
home and did and was there when the Hiroshima bomb and the
Nagasaki bombs were dropped. what did she say Lo you when

she returned to Oak Ridge?

conK:  She =aid, "Now [ know why you didn’t went me bo oo, "

AURG: She must have been then very surprigsed—-
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COOK: Very surprised.

BURG: =—-at whakt all this m=ant.

COOR: Yea.

BURG: I presume that you read John Hersey's Hirgshima,
CO0K: I don't know.

HURG: At s=ome point after—-—

CODK:; ©0h, I read articles on the people that were involved--

you mzan that ware oxposed?

EURG: Right,

COOK: Yes. T don't know 1€ I read John Hersey's; I read

variocns articles.

BURG: Did it bother wou?

COOK: No, net any more than it 4id when you look at pictures
nf the devastation of conventional beombs in Germany and other

placaa,
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nife: T think I understand, exactly. After the bombs had
been drooped and the war came to a coneclusion, you were in
a3 a roserve officer and presumably counld expect Lo be

demohilized. Is that in fact what happened?

CcooK: Well, I thought that I had been in the military Tor
soma Lime and the service had treated me roal well, and I

ppplied for integration inbo the regqular army.

EUREG:;  Oh, you did?

CREDE e YVas.,

BURG: At that time were you still a lieutenant colonsl in--

COOK: Yes.

BURG: —-in tha AUS, the Army of the Unitad States.

COOK: Yes. So I oappliad, I want to a place outzide of
Atlanta for a week and went through a leot of Lests and one
thing and another, and somctime later T was accepted inlo the
regular army. Bukt when it cama to assignments in the army, by

reason of my backoround in the abtemic enesrgy program, I
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couldn't get assignmants oversaas in certain areas, And so
I thought, if I'm going to bhe restricted, the army’s not For

me; so I resigned.

alrE:  About how long after your--—

COoK: 1 woul@ say I was in the regular army about a year.

BORG: May I ask if you had sought anybody's advica abput
converting te regular army sbatus. Had wyou talked to anyons

in particular about that decision?

CcooK:  Yes, I hiad talked to people who were vegular army and
wera basically West Point, =nd, as a result of those convar-—
sations, felt that it was the right thing to do. 1 probably
would have stay=d in tHe army if I hadn't been resivicted in

my assignments. That later wore off and, of course, at the

time T didn't realize how long that was going to stay in

effect.

BURG: No one had warned vou about this ahead of time.

COook: Ho.
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BURG: T would suppose that this was such an unusual kind of

circumstance that it never really =ziruck the people who--

CO0K: Oh, I think so 2nd then they hegan te think about,
well, if you're on assignment near a communist country or
working with communist countries it probably wasn't the right

thing to do, particularly in the exposure that I had.

AURG: Were you then released from your commission in late

19%7 ov early 19437

CO0K: Tt was =arly 1948, And, of course, one of the Lhings
Lhat also attracted ma-—-the Atomic Enargy Commission was
guite anxious for me Lo stay with them. The legislation had

been passed and they were getting organized, and they wera

interested in people with the type of cxperience and back-

ground I had with the program.

BURG: &And I should ask vou, koo, I see I have not--your years

of ragular army assignments—-—-was that done at—

COOK: Ozk Ridge.



Richard Cook, 10-27-73 MPage 52

BURG: --0ak Ridge also?

2O0K ; Lt

BURG: So you were =till there; vou were clesely connectad
with the people who were going to be putting together the

Atomic Energy Commi=sion.

Co0X: That's right.

BURG: Did any particular individual, in a sconzge, recrail You

or Lalk the most with you about coming with agc?

COOK: Well, I had a very good friend that went with the ARC;
Walter J. Williams, whe I sorved uvnder oub at ozk Ridge. He
wag director of production which had responsibility far not

only the construction but the operation of the gesseous

ditfusion plant at Oak Ridge and all of the manufacturing
scbivities that woere feeding supplies and wmateriazls and
eguipment for installation, as well as the barrier plant
whiera he spent a good deal of his time. He became director
of production for the Atomic Energy Commission. He zskad
mz to consider staying, which I did. 2nd I stayed at Oak

Ridge. In the iransition, I was his deputy at Dak Ridge,
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BURG: In the transition {from this--

COOK: Militsry to the--

FURG: —--military to civilian side.

oK capivilign,., He was a colonsl, And [ basically zbaved
in Oak Ridge and he did the travelling toe all Lthe other

oplants.

HURG: What would be the nature of your work once you had made

the btransition o AmC?

COOK:  Having eome into the centralized operation of the
district engineer's office in 08k Ridge as Williams' depuly,

we were responsible for the operation of 3ll of the other

areas out of 0ak Ridge until the Atowmic Energy Commission
became organized; so [ had a pretty good knowledge of every-
thing rhat was going on. And then the commission took ovar
from the Manhattan Engineering District and they appointed a
man by the name of Jack Franklin, who had been in c¢harge of
rescarch and development for WA, a=s what was called general

manager of Dak Ridge. 7The way the commission organizoed,
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whare all of the other operations uscd to report to the district
engineer in 02k Ridge, Dak Ridge itself became an operations
ared and reported to headguarters in Washington of the Atomicg
Fnergy Commission. And 02k Ridge reported to the director of
production. They had a director of military spplication in

los Alames, reported to the dircctor of military zpplication.
Thay had research facilities like dak Ridge Wational Teboratbory
at Dak Ridge that reported to the director of research in
washington. So they organiged entirely different, which was

natural, hecsuse their functions weoere different. S0 Mr.

Franklin was there, 1'd =zay, about a year and & half, =nd he
left to go into private indusiry and I was made general manzger
at Gak Ridge. I was responsible for all of the operations which
included the ¥-12 plant which was——LheLLhrEE plants were in

three dififerent valleys because of the hazards., In the beginning
nobody had too much knowledge about the hazards invelved. And
tne ¥Y-12 plant was an electro-magnetic diffusion plant. The

oak Ridge National Laboratory was in anolther vallay; they

wire responsible for the initial operation of a plutonium
producing reacitor, which was a pilnE plant at 0ak Ridae

for the reactors out to Hanford, Washington. And they were
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responsible there for developing Lhe process, the chemical
process for the separation of plutonium from the irradiated
uranium. And then there was the thermal diffusion plant,
which wes only desianed to go Lo an envichment of arcund
two and a half to three percent, where the ¥Y-12 plant was
designed to go to the high enrichment and the gassous

di {fusion plant wass designed o go to the top enrichment.
And the way the planis were operaled, the thermal diffusion
plant and the slectro-magneibic plant came on first, and
they had what thoy called an electro-magnetic, alpha and
betas tracks. 'The zlpha lLracks raised the concentration o
one point and then that was feed for the beta tracks that

would raise it to the highest concentration. The thermal

diffusion plant only went to about three percent and that

wag used as feed stock Lo the gasepus diffusion plant., And

the way the plants finally worked out, when the K-Z5 plant came
on stream, that was the most ecoromical way le produce enriched
U-235. S the fead stock from the thermal diflfesion and the
feed stock from the alpha tracks, the ¥-12 plant, were Fed in
at the right point in the enrichment gradient for the gaszoous

diffusien plant, which increased the rate of production goite
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a bit, So when we finally go t the Manhattan District unravel-
2d into coperating arems and got them staffed, most of the
ataff came from 0ak Ridge, that is staffing from thas stand-
noink of being in managoement office, Then the responsibilily
for the entiro thing was picked up by Washington haadauarters,
Carroll Wilson was the first manager for the Atomic Snergy
Commigsion,  The commigszion then, until it wag dizsolved,

actaed more as a poliecy body, a program dirvaction appreoval body,
2 bulffer betweon Congrass and the operation, and liaison with
the industrial and the scientific fraternity with respect (o
the policies and the programs of the commission., And tha
day-to—day operations were carvied out basically under the

general manager.,

BURG: You took your instructions then from the commission

itzelf-—

COOK: Well, when I was at Oak Ridge I took my instructions
from the director of production in Washingten, who was Walter
J. Willizms. Lalber on, he hecame deputy general manager and

T was made director of production in Washington.
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BURG: Now that gave you supervision over Oak Ridge. Did it

also inciude Hanford?

COCK: Tt inecluded Oak Ridge, Savannah River, Hanford, New
Vork {which wiaz basically an importer of row materials at

that time}, and Dayion, and the Malincrodt cperation in

St. Touis. They were an operation that took the uranium oxide,
the U-308, which came from the Colorado platesu and which came
Ffrom overseas and converted it to uranium hexofluoride—-well
it was, let's =see, yes, they convertad it to uranium hexo-
fluaride, which was used as feed to the gaseous diffuszion

plant,

BURG: Was it hexofluaoride?

COOK: Yoz, it's UF-6., Urenium hexofluoride., Hex is six,
you know.
BURG: So you, Iy 1950, '51 had come a long, long way from

the civil engineering studenlk at Michigan State University.

COOK: Right.

BURG: None of this really pradictable.
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COOK: Ho.,

SURG: And tossed into one of the most stunning, new develop-

ments, scientifiec developments of human history.

CoDEr Well, you know, when then Colonsl Kichols told ma of
iny assignment at K-25, the instruction he gave me wag, "I'm
telling Dr. Felbeck, whe is in charge of the cperation at
Carbide, that you're coming down. And I've arranged with

Br. Felbeck Lo give you a course in nuclear physics." And
George Felbeck was btrue to his commitment o Seneral Hichols,

noecause I would go in there an haour a day--

AURG: When you first geot down there.

CO0OK: Yes sir. I must have gone to him for at lsast four

months .

AalURG: Four months of an hour & day to get yourself a course,
the guick course, in nuclear physics. What a startling Lthing
Lthat must have been for you--that whole experience. And an

cHeciting kind of thing I would expect.

COCK: Yes, T've considered myself extremely fortunzte.
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BURG: Did you rvun inkto probloms in this entire line of
cndeavor, let ua say from the fTime you went ko Oak Ridge until
we g2t you up to Washington, D.C., in that capacity, run
across oprobhlems thet were veally immense in size? Or, despite
tha fact Cthat vou're in a totally new field, were problems

salved frem the data you had within your own experience?

CNoK: No, no,., Fortunately wo had people that had a very

varied superience hackground in many different fields. When

e
T
IH

ame to the oaporation of the community for instance, wa had
2 man that had experience as 3@ city manager. When it came to
Eha operations of the schooals, we had he best man we could

find--that was a former superintendent of schools. And whan

it came to a bus operation, we got abold of prople who knew
how o run buses, I think a good deal of the success of that
program wag the ability to interest and bring pzoplea thers to
wark, that guite a fow of them came at a zacrifice. I would
say the braing of the agperatieon, in the main, was wvastad in
civiliang, individuals from industrcy that the Manhattan
Digkrict was able to aell on undertaking a contract--Dupont,

Monsanito, Union Carbide, Mazlincrodi, Ceneral Electie, The
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ability of the scientific community to atbract people to Tos
Zlamos. The special relatienship that Dr. [James B.] Conant
had with the scienbific counlecparts in England. JTL was
redlly a4 job of kringing the right people together and getiting

them to work btogether.

BURG: Talent hed arrived and that talent messured up Lo the

problems as they came along.

COHOK: That's right.

BURG: How, at the start of the Eizenhower pericd you were in

Washington, D.C.--

CODX: Right.

BURG:: mE G-

COo0K:  Director of oroduction.

BEUHG: During that eight year period, if T can pulk it this way,
were any new directions undertaken that we could say were in

any way the responsibilily of that sdminiztration?
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COOK:  Yes. Well during that period Adwiral [Lewis] Strauss
wad the chairman of the Atomic Energy Commission, and he had
4 vary good relationship with the President, personal rela-
tionship, which he really should have had--ABEC was an
indapendant government ageancy at the tima reporting dirvectly
tg the Prasident, We imaugurated, at the reduest of the
military and sopproval of the executive, a8 large expansion
program, which resulted in increasing the production capacity

for fiszsionable materials many fold and for raw materials.

AURG: Increasing it for military purposes.

COOK: And we inaugurated a program, five billion dollars,

which w28 a lot of money in those days, mnd inside of a yeoar
we had expanded to tha point where we were placing a billion

dollars worth of construction a wvear.

BURG: A billion dallars a wyear.

COO0K:  Yes, And, of course, Lhalb resulted in Savannah Rivar:
it resultod in the major sxpaneEion at Hanford; it resulted in
the major expan=ion at Oak Ridge; it resulitad in the plants at

Fadurah, Kentucky and Chillicothe, Ohio; it resulted in the
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major expansion of the power utilities in those ars=as, build-
ing at khat time which were the largest power plants in the
worlid to provide the =lzsctrical enevrgy [or the gaseous
diffusion piante. Sop during his téenure we carried oul this
pragram, and it was carried out guite succeasfully. We were
investigatad zeveral times by the Jjeint commilbteoe, and they
must have found everything geod because they had independent

inwva=sti

W

ators on the program. But Chey never beat us aver bhe
hoad for anything:; so thay couldn't have found anvthing that

was really too had,

BURG:  They loocked at--

OO0 s How wae did our work.

BLURG: Yea, bthe sypenditures and the rasuits.

COOK;: The cost of the work, the type of contracts, the
progress versusg the schedules, the costs versus the schedulas,
the actual production versus the schedulas and things of this

kKind.

BURG: I wantsd to ask vou--bhecause vou and I discussed this

vesterday—--when yvou left ARC, and when was that? Was that
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"GO0, '6l? I can't vemember tho pracise date,

COOK: I think it was in '58.

BURG: '58. & little earlier then than 1 thought,  You went

to American—-—

COOK: =--Machine and Foundry,

B3URG: And ware you retiring from government service at hat

point?

COOK: Well, in & sense., 1 had become assistant general
manager for manufacturing, which had Lhe responsibility for

the raw materials program and the production program and the

construction and supply program on the commission. And during
that period, the administration felt that TVA should not
longer rely on appropriations for new facilties; that Lhey
cught to do as any other utility did--go out on the ooen
market and borrow momey and pay the interest rate that the
utilities had to pay if they were going to bz used as a vard-
stick in measuring the operation of publie utilitics. and one

of the ways that they finzlly came around to after talking
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with TVA [which reaily had no authority to enter into the

sale of revenue-bearing bonds or anything of that nature

that would enable them to finance thair ocwn plants) they
decided that the plant, the TvhA bhuilt across the river from
raduceh, Kentucky to serve that plant--well, no, it was on

the Paducah side of the river they built the plant--that

the commission should go out and contrack with private
industry to built a power plant to serve Paducah so that the
conmiszaion could release TWA from its commitment, its contract
to serve Faducah for power, and in turn feed that power back
into their distribution system to take care of the lead growth
aof ™A, Well, it finally got to the point where the sxecutive

office, which ineludes the Bureau of the Budget, decided the

thing to do was for the commission to go zhead and get an
alternate source of power 5o we could ralsase "™WA. And I

wis assigned the responsibility for negotiating that contract.
I knew it was gaing to ke a very political thing and not in
accordance with the wishes of T™WA. But I felt that ralther
than %o assign the responsibility to somebedy else I'd better
take the brunt of the heat thalt was going to develop. I

really didn't realize how much heat was going teo develop at
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that time. But it finally resolved itself, after talking with
the varipus uwtilities in that area, that the Scuthern Compsny
and the Mid-Scuth Utilities, which were headed up by a man
nzmed Yoates and Dixeon respectively. And it finally resulted
in the Dixon-Yates contract, which the jeoint committee hired

a consulting engineering firm to go ever with a fine-toothed
comb and couldn't find anything wrong with it. But it got to
ke rather scriwonicous. T was dealing with Tva: [ was dealing
with the Federal Power Commission: T was dealing with the
Furesau of the Budget; I was dealing with the joint committee's
staff; 1 wag appearing at testimony before the joint commiltee
on the contract and Wwheore we were and what we were doing and

why we were doing it. And the contract was finzlly entared

inta, and the Dixon-Yates combine started to bresk ground.
And the administration, the political complex of the Congress
changed, and they started to attack the Dixon-Yates contract
2gain. And they'd found nothing wrong with the contract,

In fact the people that they hired to see if they rcould find
seimething wrong with it in the way of price or etherwise said
they felt that the government had a very good contract. But
unfortunately the then direclor of the Bureau of the Budget

thought he necded some financial advice, somebody that had



Richard Cook, 10-27-75 Fage o6

neen invelved in the utility-financing industry. 5And he got
ahold of 2 man from the Pirst Boston Corporation, as his

advisor. And we would sit down with him and review with him
once every maybe three weeks where we were and where we werao

going. He never made BNy COmNmeEnts—-

BURG: 'This is the maa irom First Boston.

COOE:  Yes,

BURG: You remember his name? [Adelphe H. Wenzell)

COOK: 1°'d have to loock it up.

BURG: Think the record will show that though?

COOR: Y

=]
ul
P

BURE: All right,

COSK: He never offersd asny advice or guidance bto ws, he was
attacked for being an insider, industrizl advisor to the B08 with
a possible conflict of interest as his firm arranged for the
finaneing required Lo build the plont set forth in the DixXon-Yates

contract with the government,

{Interruption]

BURG: -—--really klew up when First Boston wound up as one of

the financing institutions of the Dixon-Yates-—-—
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COoOK: Right. Seo the joint commitbes got after the Tustice
Department for conflict of interest. And the Juctice Depart-
ment held haarings and they finally concluded that there was
a conflict of interests and theraefore the government should
terminate the contract, I must confoss I was a hostile
witnaszg because the contract was a good contract and it would
have provided the Atomic Energy Commission power at a very

reasonahle rata.

FURG: And the First Boston man had literally done nothing—-

O0OK: MNothing. He didan't participate in the terms or {ha
conditions or tthe rates in any way whatsoewver, When we went

ovar to bring the Bursau of the Budget up to date, he would

2it in &= one of their advisors. Wow what he Lold them, I

don't know, but he had no bearing whatsocever on the contract,

BURG: And you testified teo that, yeurself,

COOK: Right. But it didn't pan ownt. The Justice Demartment
provaed their point and the joint committee, who was then

hesaded up by Scenator Clinton Anderson, was wvery happy about it.
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In fact, he said, "The Lord giveth and the Tord taketh away."
S0 by that time I was deputy general manager--this was a long,
drawn-out thing--I felt that I wasn't doing the commission any
dood or myselfl any good by staying with the commission bacause
of the irritations and probably harsh Feelings that had

developed as a result of my testifying and—

BURG: You felt that. Did vou have any hard evidence to

suppart the thought that there wera bad feelings?

COOK: Well, I can't say I had hard evidence, axcept in one
case, I know kthat TLowis Strauss recommanded me o Clinton
Lnderson as the general manager whon Ceneral [Kenneth]

Fialds resigned, and he was opposed to it.

BURG: Anderson ooposed it.

CO0K:  And he was chairman nof the jeint committes at the Lime,
Sag I felt that it wonld he better for me to just clear out of

the picture entively.

BURG ; I saa,
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CO0K: And at that time an opportunity came up for me to go

with AMF; so I 4id,

BURG: At AMF you then ran into Walier Boedell Smith.

COOK: Yes, he was vice-chairman at the time and very alert

and acltive,

BURG: What was your new position with AMF, by the way?

con¥: Well I started out as dirsctor of administration in
tha government products group which was one of about five
groups they had., They had a bakery division, they had a
tobaceca--wall not a divisgion, & group--a tobacco group, a

machinery group, a sporting goods group. They generally

had five or six different aperations that come undar the

heading and over-all guidance of a group executiva.

BURE;: And that was your peosition?

cooK: Wo, na, I was in the staff of a2 group exacutive of
the government products group as the director of zdministra-
tion, which bhacially had to deo with business aspects and

financial aspects and, rveally, the day-to-day operations.

I wanted to stay out of atomic energy for a year so that
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Lhese would be no--which T did. After that periecd, I hecame
3 group execulive of AMF Atomics, which had reszponsibility
for the operation in Canada and the AMFP activities in the
United States and then 2lso depuly group executive of the
government prodockts group. And I hecame a3 divisienal vice-

oresident &nd then a corporate vice-president.

BURG: Let me ask you, at least a2t this time focusing only on
this, in these positions, as you rose for cwample Lo corporate

vice-president, did that hring vou into close contact wilth Smith?

COCK: Well, yes, and I was really in close contact with him
Lefore [ did that hecause the government products group had
an exegutive bosrd that used to meet monthly to review the

statune of all the programs, financial status and profita or

losses. And ho was chairmen of this group. And his affice
was in 1701 ¥ Street, and I had an office there 25 well a5
an office in MNew York. and T spent gquite a kit aof time in
Washington as well as in Wew York and kept him fully advised

ta what wes going on.

BURG: Had you known much zbout him belore you went to AMP?
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COD¥: Only by reason of my military experience, He was a
deputy to General Eisenhower and then, yvou know, a man like
that became ambassador to Russia, living in Washington vou
can't help but read asbout him and know abhout him. But I

had noaver met him hefore I cams with AMP.

BURG: What was that first meeting 1ike? Can vou describe
now Lhat came about and what your impressions of the man

ware on thalt Ffirst ocecssion?

Coo¥: Well, my first meeting was in his office and it was
puraly a social visit, I think he wanted to try to gat a
feel for what T might be like. We bhoth talked albout some of
our experiencesz. OFf course hiz exporiencas were many and

varied so I didn't do too much talking., But I was highly

impressad with the man. In every situvation I've ever saan

him he's basen very impressive.

BlURG: You found him a good man to work for?

COOK: Oh, yes. He was very cordial. lle was not a driver

like Groves. OFf course the situations were entiroly different:

there was no need for it. But I cowld imagine that in a
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military situation that reguired something be done within a

given period of time, he didn't brook any interference.

BURG: May I ask if vou found him 2 competent and knowledgeable

man in this new field of endesvor for him?

COOK: Yes. Well, he wias very Tamiliar with the various
activities in the military, #nd the government products

group wis really a group which was basically akout eighty
prreent devoted o doing ongineering, manufacturing, erection
ar operation for the government. And at that time we were
Just beginning @ program of Titan missile launchors which

were placed in a silo built by others which opened up the

concrete doors, elevated the missile and the launching
platfcrm and locked in position for firing. And we had other

programs of that nature that he was very knowledgeable in.

BURG: I'm interested in the picture I'm getting of Smith at
this stage of his Iife which is, as vou know and as VoL v
alluded fo in 2 way, quite different from the hard-nosed,
driving position that he had as Risenhower's chief aide

throughout that war-time perinod, because tangling with Beetle
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Emith was something that one did not want to do in those days.

But the man you ==w wag--

CO0K:  Entirvely different,

BURG: --entirsly different from this. wWas there any sociala

izing with him that you--

COOK:  Only in a sensa of business socializing. I visited
him &t his home a couple of times whan he was 1ll, but I
wouldn't call that socializing., But when there were groups
of AMF key people, or our customers ftogether, that kind of

socializing, yas,

BURG: Well I regret to say that time is running low on me:

s¢ if we may terminate this interview at this point with oy

thanking you =o much for your courteous coooerabion,
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